California Enterprise Development Authority
REGULAR MEETING
***TELECONFERENCE MEETING NOTICE and AGENDA***
LOCATIONS LISTED BELOW
10:30 A.M.
Thursday, November 18, 2021
Zoom Call Information
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87111378792?pwd=QXdMY0hrbWdUMEQ4dVBJbSt2REo5UT09
Meeting ID: 871 1137 8792
Passcode: 377663
One tap mobile
+16699006833,,87111378792#,,,,*377663# US (San Jose)
+12532158782,,87111378792#,,,,*377663# US (Tacoma)
Pursuant to AB 361, members of the California Enterprise Development Authority and staff will participate in this
meeting via a teleconference. To reduce the spread of COVID-19, members of the public are asked to participate
and comment directly by logging into the Livestream
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87111378792?pwd=QXdMY0hrbWdUMEQ4dVBJbSt2REo5UT09

Call to Order and Roll Call
Statement of Disclosure
Action Items
1. Consent Agenda
a. Approve Minutes from the Regular Business Meeting on October 28, 2021.
b. Approve Resolution 21-45 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Declaring Intention
to Finance Installation of Distributed Generation Renewable Energy Sources, Energy Efficiency,
and Water Efficiency Improvements in the County of Marin.
c. Approve Resolution 21-46 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Declaring Intention
to Finance Installation of Distributed Generation Renewable Energy Sources, Energy Efficiency,
and Water Efficiency Improvements in the City of Vallejo.
d. Approve Resolution 21-47 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Declaring Intention
to Finance Installation of Distributed Generation Renewable Energy Sources, Energy Efficiency,
and Water Efficiency Improvements in the City of Modesto.
2. Approve Resolution 21-48 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Authorizing and
Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California Enterprise Development Authority Will
Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of Financing and/or Refinancing the Cost of the Acquisition,
Construction, Improvement, Equipping and Furnishing of Healthcare Facilities for the Benefit of
Community Health Systems, Inc. and/or a Related or Successor Entity; Providing the Terms and
Conditions for Such Loan Agreement and Other Matters Relating Thereto Herein Specified.
3. Approve Resolution 21-49 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Authorizing and
Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California Enterprise Development Authority Will
Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of Financing, Refinancing and/or Reimbursing the Cost of
the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement, Equipping and Furnishing of Educational Facilities for
the Benefit of New Horizon Irvine Educational Foundation, New Horizon School, Irvine and/or a
Related or Successor Entity; Providing the Terms and Conditions for Such Loan Agreement and Other
Matters Relating Thereto Herein Specified.
4. Approve Resolution 21-50 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Authorizing Public
Meetings to be held via Teleconferencing Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(E) and Making
Findings and Determinations Regarding The Same.
5. Review and Approve Audit and Audit Findings.
Public Comment

2150 River Plaza Drive, Suite 275, Sacramento, CA 95833 = (916) 448-8252, ext. 12

California Enterprise Development Authority
Chair Report
PACE Report
Other Business
Adjournment
This agenda can be obtained at https://ceda.caled.org. The California Enterprise Development Authority
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) by ensuring that the facilities are accessible to persons
with disabilities and by providing this notice and information in alternative formats when requested. If you need
further assistance, you may contact us before the meeting at (916) 448-8252, ext. 12.

2150 River Plaza Drive, Suite 275, Sacramento, CA 95833 = (916) 448-8252, ext. 12

California Enterprise Development Authority
MINUTES
Regular Meeting
***ZOOM CALL***
CEDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Thursday, October 28, 2021

Zoom Call Location
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84997651891?pwd=NWdaYjl6MkJnTjZmYUc1YjNIY0dJQT09
Meeting ID: 849 9765 1891
Call to Order
Gurbax Sahota, Chair of the California Enterprise Development Authority, called the meeting to order at
10:30 a.m.
Roll Call
Members Present:
Robert Burris
Christine Damko
Jessica Gonzales
Josh Metz (10:32 am)
Gurbax Sahota
Larry Vaupel
CALED Management/
Staff Present:
Laura Cole-Rowe
Michelle Stephens
Public:

Bernhard Alvine, Kutak Rock
Sam Balisy, Kutak Rock
Peter Grabell, Dividend Finance
Davis Mnatsakanyan, Kutak Rock
Jacob Roth, Dividend Finance

Statement of Disclosure
Action Items
1. Approve Consent Agenda
a. Approve Minutes from the Regular Business Meeting on October 21, 2021.
Motion: Board Member Christine Damko made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Board
Member Larry Vaupel seconded the motion on the floor.
The motion passed with the following roll call vote:
Robert Burris
Christine Damko
Jessica Gonzales
Josh Metz
Gurbax Sahota
Larry Vaupel

California Enterprise Development Authority
2. Approve Resolution 21-43 Authorizing the Issuance of the California Enterprise Development
Authority Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (Pace-M1) Limited Obligation Improvement
Bonds, Series 2021-1, Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Supplemental Indenture and Bond
Purchase Agreement, and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Other Related Documents and
Actions Necessary to the Delivery of Such Bonds.
Discussion: Michelle Stephens gave the staff report. Jacob Roth gave the background on the project
which manufactures modular housing – 250 units have already been ordered with 1,000 more units
expected. The company will be able to do approximately 1,200 units a year and will employ 50 people.
The project includes seismic upgrades, and solar and battery backup.
Motion: Board Member Jessica Gonzales made the motion to approve Resolution 21-43. Board Member
Robert Burris seconded the motion on the floor.
The motion passed with the following roll call vote:
Robert Burris
Christine Damko
Jessica Gonzales
Josh Metz
Gurbax Sahota
Larry Vaupel
3. Discussion of the Scheduling of Meetings of the California Enterprise Development Authority and AB
361 and Make Findings and Determinations Regarding Same.
Discussion: Michelle Stephens gave staff report and recapped the provisions of AB 361. Sam Balisy
reported that by passing this, CEDA will not have to post the agenda at the location of each board member
as CEDA is continuing to meet remotely. He also stated that the members of the public will still be able to
join the meeting and give comments under public comment and/or during the item presented. It will need
to be renewed/brought back to the board every 30 days.
Motion: Board Member Larry Vaupel made the motion to approve Resolution 21-44. Board Member
Christine Damko seconded the motion on the floor.
The motion passed with the following roll call vote:
Robert Burris
Christine Damko
Jessica Gonzales
Josh Metz
Gurbax Sahota
Larry Vaupel
Public Comment
Chair Report:
Michelle Stephens reported on the upcoming meeting schedule. Gurbax reminded board members
that the executive board meeting will take place immediately following the CEDA meeting on
November 4.

California Enterprise Development Authority
PACE Report
Jacob Roth reported that 26 cities will need to be onboarded in the future.
Other Business
Adjournment
Motion: Jessica Gonzales made the motion to adjourn the meeting. Robert Burris seconded the motion
on the floor. Gurbax Sahota adjourned the meeting at 10:42 am after the roll call vote.
The motion passed with the following roll call vote:
Robert Burris
Christine Damko
Jessica Gonzales
Josh Metz
Gurbax Sahota
Larry Vaupel

RESOLUTION NO. 21-45
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY DECLARING INTENTION TO FINANCE INSTALLATION
OF DISTRIBUTED GENERATION RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES,
ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENTS, AND WATER EFFICIENCY
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE COUNTY OF MARIN
WHEREAS, the California Enterprise Development Authority (“CEDA”) is a joint
powers authority organized and existing pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government
Code Section 6500 et seq.) and that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (the “Agreement”)
dated as of June 1, 2006, among the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma; and
WHEREAS, CEDA is authorized under the Agreement and Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California and in accordance with Chapter 29 of
Part 3 of Division 7 of the Streets & Highways Code of the State of California (“Chapter 29”) to
authorize assessments to finance the installation of distributed generation renewable energy
sources, energy efficiency, water efficiency improvements, electric vehicle charging, seismic
strengthening improvements, and wildfire suppression and safety improvements that are
permanently fixed to real property (“Authorized Improvements”); and
WHEREAS, CEDA has obtained authorization from the County of Marin (the “County”)
to conduct assessment proceedings and to enter into contractual assessments to finance the
installation of Authorized Improvements within the jurisdictional boundaries of the County
pursuant to Chapter 29; and
WHEREAS, CEDA desires to declare its intention to establish a Figtree PACE program (“Figtree
PACE”) in the County, pursuant to which CEDA, subject to certain conditions set forth below,
would enter into contractual assessments to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements
in the County.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, as follows:
Section 1. Findings. The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines the following:
(a)

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b)

Energy and water conservation efforts, including the promotion of Authorized
Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real property, are
necessary to address the issue of global climate change and the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions in the County.

(c)

The upfront cost of making residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property more energy and water efficient, along with the fact that most commercial
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loans for that purpose are due on the sale of the property, prevents many property
owners from installing Authorized Improvements.
(d)

A public purpose will be served by establishing a contractual assessment program,
to be known as Figtree PACE, pursuant to which CEDA will finance the installation
of Authorized Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property in the County.

Section 2. Determination of Public Interest. The Board of Directors hereby determines
that (a) it would be convenient, advantageous, and in the public interest to designate an area, which
shall encompass the entire geographic territory within the boundaries of the County, within which
CEDA and property owners within the County may enter into contractual assessments to finance
the installation of Authorized Improvements pursuant to Chapter 29 and (b) it is in the public
interest for CEDA to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements in the County pursuant
to Chapter 29.
Section 3. Identification of Authorized Improvements. CEDA hereby declares its
intention to make contractual assessment financing available to property owners to finance
installation of Authorized Improvements, including but not limited to those improvements detailed
in the Report described in Section 8 hereof (the “Report”), as that Report may be amended from
time to time.
Section 4. Identification of Boundaries. Contractual assessments may be entered into
by property owners located within the entire geographic territory of the County.
Section 5. Proposed Financing Arrangements. Under Chapter 29, CEDA may issue
bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Chapter 29 that are payable
by contractual assessments. Division 10 (commencing with Section 8500) of the Streets &
Highways Code of the State (the “Improvement Bond Act of 1915”) shall apply to any
indebtedness issued pursuant to Chapter 29, insofar as the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 is not
in conflict with Chapter 29. The creditworthiness of a property owner to participate in the
financing of Authorized Improvements will be based on the criteria developed by Figtree Energy
Financing (the “Program Administrator”) upon consultation with Figtree PACE Program
underwriters or other financial representatives, CEDA general counsel and bond counsel, and as
shall be approved by the Board of Directors of CEDA. In connection with indebtedness issued
under the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 that is payable from contractual assessments, serial
and/or term improvement bonds or other indebtedness shall be issued in such series and shall
mature in such principal amounts and at such times (not to exceed 20 years from the second day
of September next following their date), and at such rate or rates of interest (not to exceed the
maximum rate permitted by applicable law) as shall be determined by Board of Directors at the
time of the issuance and sale of the indebtedness. The provisions of Part 11.1 of the Improvement
Bond Act of 1915 shall apply to the calling of the bonds. It is the intention of CEDA to create a
special reserve fund for the bonds under Part 16 of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915. Neither
CEDA, nor any of its members participating in the Figtree PACE Program, shall advance available
surplus funds from its treasury to cure any deficiency in the redemption fund to be created with
respect to the indebtedness; provided, however, that this determination shall not prevent CEDA or
any of its members from, in their sole discretion, so advancing funds. The Bonds may be refunded
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under Division 11.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code or other applicable laws
permitting refunding, upon the conditions specified by and upon determination of CEDA.
CEDA hereby authorizes the Program Administrator, upon consultation with CEDA
general counsel, bond counsel and the Figtree PACE underwriter, to commence preparation of
documents and take necessary steps to prepare for the issuance of bonds, notes or other forms of
indebtedness as authorized by Chapter 29.
In connection with the issuance of bonds payable from contractual assessments, CEDA
expects to obligate itself, through a covenant with the owners of the bonds, to exercise its
foreclosure rights with respect to delinquent contractual assessment installments under specified
circumstances.
Section 6. Public Hearing. Pursuant to the Act, CEDA hereby orders that a public hearing
be held before CEDA Board (the “Board”), at 2150 River Plaza Drive, Suite 275, Sacramento, CA
95833, on Thursday, December 16, 2021, at 10:30 AM, for the purposes of allowing interested
persons to object to, or inquire about, the proposed Figtree PACE Program. The public hearing
may be continued from time to time as determined by the Board for a time not exceeding a total
of 180 days.
At the time of the hearing, the Report described in Section 8 hereof shall be summarized,
and the Board shall afford all persons who are present an opportunity to comment upon, object to,
or present evidence with regard to the proposed Figtree PACE Program, the extent of the area
proposed to be included within the boundaries of the assessment district, the terms and conditions
of the draft assessment contract described in Section 8 hereof (the “Contract”), or the proposed
financing provisions. Following the public hearing, CEDA may adopt a resolution confirming the
Report (the “Resolution Confirming Report”) or may direct the Report’s modification in any
respect, or may abandon the proceedings.
The Board hereby orders the publication of a notice of public hearing once a week for two
successive weeks. Two publications in a newspaper published once a week or more often, with at
least five days intervening between the respective publication dates not counting such publication
dates, are sufficient. The period of notice will commence upon the first day of publication and
terminate at the end of the fourteenth day. The first publication shall occur not later than 20 days
before the date of the public hearing.
Section 7. Notice to Water and Electric Providers. Pursuant to Section 5898.24 of the
Streets & Highways Code, written notice of the proposed contractual assessment program within
the County to all water and electric providers within the boundaries of the County has been
provided.
Section 8. Report. The Board hereby directs the Program Administrator to prepare the
Report and file said Report with the Board at or before the time of the public hearing described in
Section 6 hereof containing all of the following:
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a)
b)
c)

d)

e)

A map showing the boundaries of the territory within which contractual
assessments are proposed to be offered, as set forth in Section 4 hereof.
A draft contractual assessment contract (the “Contract”) specifying the terms and
conditions of the agreement between CEDA and a property owner within the
Counity.
A statement of CEDA’s policies concerning contractual assessments including all
of the following:
(1)
Identification of types of Authorized Improvements that may be financed
through the use of contractual assessments.
(2)
Identification of the CEDA official authorized to enter into contractual
assessments on behalf of CEDA.
(3)
A maximum aggregate dollar amount of contractual assessments.
(4)
A method for setting requests from property owners for financing through
contractual assessments in priority order in the event that requests appear
likely to exceed the authorization amount.
A plan for raising a capital amount required to pay for work performed in
connection with contractual assessments. The plan may include the sale of a bond
or bonds or other financing relationship pursuant to Section 5898.28 of Chapter 29.
The plan (i) shall include a statement of, or method for determining, the interest
rate and time period during which contracting property owners would pay any
assessment, (ii) shall provide for any reserve fund or funds, and (iii) shall provide
for the apportionment of all or any portion of the costs incidental to financing,
administration and collection of the contractual assessment program among the
consenting property owners and CEDA.
A report on the results of the discussions with the County Auditor-Controller
described in Section 10 hereof, concerning the additional fees, if any, that will be
charged to CEDA for inclusion of the proposed contractual assessments on the
general property tax roll of the County, and a plan for financing the payment of
those fees.

Section 9. Nature of Assessments. Assessments levied pursuant to Chapter 29, and the
interest and any penalties thereon, will constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on
which they are made, until they are paid. Unless otherwise directed by CEDA, the assessments
shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as the general taxes of the County on
real property are payable, and subject to the same penalties and remedies and lien priorities in the
event of delinquency and default.
Section 10. Consultations with County Auditor-Controller. CEDA hereby directs the
Program Administrator to enter into discussions with the County Auditor-Controller in order to
reach agreement on what additional fees, if any, will be charged to CEDA for incorporating the
proposed contractual assessments into the assessments of the general taxes of the County on real
property.
Section 11. Preparation of Current Roll of Assessment. Pursuant to Section 5898.24(c),
CEDA hereby designates the Program Administrator as the responsible party for annually
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preparing the current roll of assessment obligations by assessor’s parcel number on property
subject to a voluntary contractual assessment.
Section 12. Procedures for Responding to Inquiries. The Program Administrator shall
establish procedures to promptly respond to inquiries concerning current and future estimated
liability for a voluntary contractual assessment.
Section 13. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November, 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
By:____________________________
Gurbax Sahota, Chair
ATTEST:

______________________________________
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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RESOLUTION NO. 21-46
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY DECLARING INTENTION TO FINANCE INSTALLATION
OF DISTRIBUTED GENERATION RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES,
ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENTS, AND WATER EFFICIENCY
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF VALLEJO
WHEREAS, the California Enterprise Development Authority (“CEDA”) is a joint
powers authority organized and existing pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government
Code Section 6500 et seq.) and that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (the “Agreement”)
dated as of June 1, 2006, among the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma; and
WHEREAS, CEDA is authorized under the Agreement and Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California and in accordance with Chapter 29 of
Part 3 of Division 7 of the Streets & Highways Code of the State of California (“Chapter 29”) to
authorize assessments to finance the installation of distributed generation renewable energy
sources, energy efficiency, water efficiency improvements, electric vehicle charging, seismic
strengthening improvements, and wildfire suppression and safety improvements that are
permanently fixed to real property (“Authorized Improvements”); and
WHEREAS, CEDA has obtained authorization from the City of Vallejo (the “City”) to
conduct assessment proceedings and to enter into contractual assessments to finance the
installation of Authorized Improvements within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City pursuant
to Chapter 29; and
WHEREAS, CEDA desires to declare its intention to establish a Figtree PACE program (“Figtree
PACE”) in the City, pursuant to which CEDA, subject to certain conditions set forth below, would
enter into contractual assessments to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements in the
City.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, as follows:
Section 1. Findings. The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines the following:
(a)

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b)

Energy and water conservation efforts, including the promotion of Authorized
Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real property, are
necessary to address the issue of global climate change and the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions in the City.

(c)

The upfront cost of making residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property more energy and water efficient, along with the fact that most commercial
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loans for that purpose are due on the sale of the property, prevents many property
owners from installing Authorized Improvements.
(d)

A public purpose will be served by establishing a contractual assessment program,
to be known as Figtree PACE, pursuant to which CEDA will finance the installation
of Authorized Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property in the City.

Section 2. Determination of Public Interest. The Board of Directors hereby determines
that (a) it would be convenient, advantageous, and in the public interest to designate an area, which
shall encompass the entire geographic territory within the boundaries of the City, within which
CEDA and property owners within the City may enter into contractual assessments to finance the
installation of Authorized Improvements pursuant to Chapter 29 and (b) it is in the public interest
for CEDA to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements in the City pursuant to Chapter
29.
Section 3. Identification of Authorized Improvements. CEDA hereby declares its
intention to make contractual assessment financing available to property owners to finance
installation of Authorized Improvements, including but not limited to those improvements detailed
in the Report described in Section 8 hereof (the “Report”), as that Report may be amended from
time to time.
Section 4. Identification of Boundaries. Contractual assessments may be entered into
by property owners located within the entire geographic territory of the City.
Section 5. Proposed Financing Arrangements. Under Chapter 29, CEDA may issue
bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Chapter 29 that are payable
by contractual assessments. Division 10 (commencing with Section 8500) of the Streets &
Highways Code of the State (the “Improvement Bond Act of 1915”) shall apply to any
indebtedness issued pursuant to Chapter 29, insofar as the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 is not
in conflict with Chapter 29. The creditworthiness of a property owner to participate in the
financing of Authorized Improvements will be based on the criteria developed by Figtree Energy
Financing (the “Program Administrator”) upon consultation with Figtree PACE Program
underwriters or other financial representatives, CEDA general counsel and bond counsel, and as
shall be approved by the Board of Directors of CEDA. In connection with indebtedness issued
under the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 that is payable from contractual assessments, serial
and/or term improvement bonds or other indebtedness shall be issued in such series and shall
mature in such principal amounts and at such times (not to exceed 20 years from the second day
of September next following their date), and at such rate or rates of interest (not to exceed the
maximum rate permitted by applicable law) as shall be determined by Board of Directors at the
time of the issuance and sale of the indebtedness. The provisions of Part 11.1 of the Improvement
Bond Act of 1915 shall apply to the calling of the bonds. It is the intention of CEDA to create a
special reserve fund for the bonds under Part 16 of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915. Neither
CEDA, nor any of its members participating in the Figtree PACE Program, shall advance available
surplus funds from its treasury to cure any deficiency in the redemption fund to be created with
respect to the indebtedness; provided, however, that this determination shall not prevent CEDA or
any of its members from, in their sole discretion, so advancing funds. The Bonds may be refunded
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under Division 11.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code or other applicable laws
permitting refunding, upon the conditions specified by and upon determination of CEDA.
CEDA hereby authorizes the Program Administrator, upon consultation with CEDA
general counsel, bond counsel and the Figtree PACE underwriter, to commence preparation of
documents and take necessary steps to prepare for the issuance of bonds, notes or other forms of
indebtedness as authorized by Chapter 29.
In connection with the issuance of bonds payable from contractual assessments, CEDA
expects to obligate itself, through a covenant with the owners of the bonds, to exercise its
foreclosure rights with respect to delinquent contractual assessment installments under specified
circumstances.
Section 6. Public Hearing. Pursuant to the Act, CEDA hereby orders that a public hearing
be held before CEDA Board (the “Board”), at 2150 River Plaza Drive, Suite 275, Sacramento, CA
95833, on Thursday, December 16, 2021, at 10:30 AM, for the purposes of allowing interested
persons to object to, or inquire about, the proposed Figtree PACE Program. The public hearing
may be continued from time to time as determined by the Board for a time not exceeding a total
of 180 days.
At the time of the hearing, the Report described in Section 8 hereof shall be summarized,
and the Board shall afford all persons who are present an opportunity to comment upon, object to,
or present evidence with regard to the proposed Figtree PACE Program, the extent of the area
proposed to be included within the boundaries of the assessment district, the terms and conditions
of the draft assessment contract described in Section 8 hereof (the “Contract”), or the proposed
financing provisions. Following the public hearing, CEDA may adopt a resolution confirming the
Report (the “Resolution Confirming Report”) or may direct the Report’s modification in any
respect, or may abandon the proceedings.
The Board hereby orders the publication of a notice of public hearing once a week for two
successive weeks. Two publications in a newspaper published once a week or more often, with at
least five days intervening between the respective publication dates not counting such publication
dates, are sufficient. The period of notice will commence upon the first day of publication and
terminate at the end of the fourteenth day. The first publication shall occur not later than 20 days
before the date of the public hearing.
Section 7. Notice to Water and Electric Providers. Pursuant to Section 5898.24 of the
Streets & Highways Code, written notice of the proposed contractual assessment program within
the City to all water and electric providers within the boundaries of the City has been provided.
Section 8. Report. The Board hereby directs the Program Administrator to prepare the
Report and file said Report with the Board at or before the time of the public hearing described in
Section 6 hereof containing all of the following:
a)
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A map showing the boundaries of the territory within which contractual
assessments are proposed to be offered, as set forth in Section 4 hereof.

b)
c)

d)

e)

A draft contractual assessment contract (the “Contract”) specifying the terms and
conditions of the agreement between CEDA and a property owner within the City.
A statement of CEDA’s policies concerning contractual assessments including all
of the following:
(1)
Identification of types of Authorized Improvements that may be financed
through the use of contractual assessments.
(2)
Identification of the CEDA official authorized to enter into contractual
assessments on behalf of CEDA.
(3)
A maximum aggregate dollar amount of contractual assessments.
(4)
A method for setting requests from property owners for financing through
contractual assessments in priority order in the event that requests appear
likely to exceed the authorization amount.
A plan for raising a capital amount required to pay for work performed in
connection with contractual assessments. The plan may include the sale of a bond
or bonds or other financing relationship pursuant to Section 5898.28 of Chapter 29.
The plan (i) shall include a statement of, or method for determining, the interest
rate and time period during which contracting property owners would pay any
assessment, (ii) shall provide for any reserve fund or funds, and (iii) shall provide
for the apportionment of all or any portion of the costs incidental to financing,
administration and collection of the contractual assessment program among the
consenting property owners and CEDA.
A report on the results of the discussions with the City Auditor-Controller described
in Section 10 hereof, concerning the additional fees, if any, that will be charged to
CEDA for inclusion of the proposed contractual assessments on the general
property tax roll of the City, and a plan for financing the payment of those fees.

Section 9. Nature of Assessments. Assessments levied pursuant to Chapter 29, and the
interest and any penalties thereon, will constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on
which they are made, until they are paid. Unless otherwise directed by CEDA, the assessments
shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as the general taxes of the City on real
property are payable, and subject to the same penalties and remedies and lien priorities in the event
of delinquency and default.
Section 10. Consultations with City Auditor-Controller. CEDA hereby directs the
Program Administrator to enter into discussions with the City Auditor-Controller in order to reach
agreement on what additional fees, if any, will be charged to CEDA for incorporating the proposed
contractual assessments into the assessments of the general taxes of the City on real property.
Section 11. Preparation of Current Roll of Assessment. Pursuant to Section 5898.24(c),
CEDA hereby designates the Program Administrator as the responsible party for annually
preparing the current roll of assessment obligations by assessor’s parcel number on property
subject to a voluntary contractual assessment.
Section 12. Procedures for Responding to Inquiries. The Program Administrator shall
establish procedures to promptly respond to inquiries concerning current and future estimated
liability for a voluntary contractual assessment.
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Section 13. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November, 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
By:____________________________
Gurbax Sahota, Chair
ATTEST:

______________________________________
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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RESOLUTION NO. 21-47
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY DECLARING INTENTION TO FINANCE INSTALLATION
OF DISTRIBUTED GENERATION RENEWABLE ENERGY SOURCES,
ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENTS, AND WATER EFFICIENCY
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF MODESTO
WHEREAS, the California Enterprise Development Authority (“CEDA”) is a joint
powers authority organized and existing pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Government
Code Section 6500 et seq.) and that certain Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (the “Agreement”)
dated as of June 1, 2006, among the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma; and
WHEREAS, CEDA is authorized under the Agreement and Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California and in accordance with Chapter 29 of
Part 3 of Division 7 of the Streets & Highways Code of the State of California (“Chapter 29”) to
authorize assessments to finance the installation of distributed generation renewable energy
sources, energy efficiency, water efficiency improvements, electric vehicle charging, seismic
strengthening improvements, and wildfire suppression and safety improvements that are
permanently fixed to real property (“Authorized Improvements”); and
WHEREAS, CEDA has obtained authorization from the City of Modesto (the “City”) to
conduct assessment proceedings and to enter into contractual assessments to finance the
installation of Authorized Improvements within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City pursuant
to Chapter 29; and
WHEREAS, CEDA desires to declare its intention to establish a Figtree PACE program (“Figtree
PACE”) in the City, pursuant to which CEDA, subject to certain conditions set forth below, would
enter into contractual assessments to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements in the
City.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, as follows:
Section 1. Findings. The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines the following:
(a)

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

(b)

Energy and water conservation efforts, including the promotion of Authorized
Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real property, are
necessary to address the issue of global climate change and the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions in the City.

(c)

The upfront cost of making residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property more energy and water efficient, along with the fact that most commercial
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loans for that purpose are due on the sale of the property, prevents many property
owners from installing Authorized Improvements.
(d)

A public purpose will be served by establishing a contractual assessment program,
to be known as Figtree PACE, pursuant to which CEDA will finance the installation
of Authorized Improvements to residential, commercial, industrial, or other real
property in the City.

Section 2. Determination of Public Interest. The Board of Directors hereby determines
that (a) it would be convenient, advantageous, and in the public interest to designate an area, which
shall encompass the entire geographic territory within the boundaries of the City, within which
CEDA and property owners within the City may enter into contractual assessments to finance the
installation of Authorized Improvements pursuant to Chapter 29 and (b) it is in the public interest
for CEDA to finance the installation of Authorized Improvements in the City pursuant to Chapter
29.
Section 3. Identification of Authorized Improvements. CEDA hereby declares its
intention to make contractual assessment financing available to property owners to finance
installation of Authorized Improvements, including but not limited to those improvements detailed
in the Report described in Section 8 hereof (the “Report”), as that Report may be amended from
time to time.
Section 4. Identification of Boundaries. Contractual assessments may be entered into
by property owners located within the entire geographic territory of the City.
Section 5. Proposed Financing Arrangements. Under Chapter 29, CEDA may issue
bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness (the “Bonds”) pursuant to Chapter 29 that are payable
by contractual assessments. Division 10 (commencing with Section 8500) of the Streets &
Highways Code of the State (the “Improvement Bond Act of 1915”) shall apply to any
indebtedness issued pursuant to Chapter 29, insofar as the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 is not
in conflict with Chapter 29. The creditworthiness of a property owner to participate in the
financing of Authorized Improvements will be based on the criteria developed by Figtree Energy
Financing (the “Program Administrator”) upon consultation with Figtree PACE Program
underwriters or other financial representatives, CEDA general counsel and bond counsel, and as
shall be approved by the Board of Directors of CEDA. In connection with indebtedness issued
under the Improvement Bond Act of 1915 that is payable from contractual assessments, serial
and/or term improvement bonds or other indebtedness shall be issued in such series and shall
mature in such principal amounts and at such times (not to exceed 20 years from the second day
of September next following their date), and at such rate or rates of interest (not to exceed the
maximum rate permitted by applicable law) as shall be determined by Board of Directors at the
time of the issuance and sale of the indebtedness. The provisions of Part 11.1 of the Improvement
Bond Act of 1915 shall apply to the calling of the bonds. It is the intention of CEDA to create a
special reserve fund for the bonds under Part 16 of the Improvement Bond Act of 1915. Neither
CEDA, nor any of its members participating in the Figtree PACE Program, shall advance available
surplus funds from its treasury to cure any deficiency in the redemption fund to be created with
respect to the indebtedness; provided, however, that this determination shall not prevent CEDA or
any of its members from, in their sole discretion, so advancing funds. The Bonds may be refunded
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under Division 11.5 of the California Streets and Highways Code or other applicable laws
permitting refunding, upon the conditions specified by and upon determination of CEDA.
CEDA hereby authorizes the Program Administrator, upon consultation with CEDA
general counsel, bond counsel and the Figtree PACE underwriter, to commence preparation of
documents and take necessary steps to prepare for the issuance of bonds, notes or other forms of
indebtedness as authorized by Chapter 29.
In connection with the issuance of bonds payable from contractual assessments, CEDA
expects to obligate itself, through a covenant with the owners of the bonds, to exercise its
foreclosure rights with respect to delinquent contractual assessment installments under specified
circumstances.
Section 6. Public Hearing. Pursuant to the Act, CEDA hereby orders that a public hearing
be held before CEDA Board (the “Board”), at 2150 River Plaza Drive, Suite 275, Sacramento, CA
95833, on Thursday, December 16, 2021, at 10:30 AM, for the purposes of allowing interested
persons to object to, or inquire about, the proposed Figtree PACE Program. The public hearing
may be continued from time to time as determined by the Board for a time not exceeding a total
of 180 days.
At the time of the hearing, the Report described in Section 8 hereof shall be summarized,
and the Board shall afford all persons who are present an opportunity to comment upon, object to,
or present evidence with regard to the proposed Figtree PACE Program, the extent of the area
proposed to be included within the boundaries of the assessment district, the terms and conditions
of the draft assessment contract described in Section 8 hereof (the “Contract”), or the proposed
financing provisions. Following the public hearing, CEDA may adopt a resolution confirming the
Report (the “Resolution Confirming Report”) or may direct the Report’s modification in any
respect, or may abandon the proceedings.
The Board hereby orders the publication of a notice of public hearing once a week for two
successive weeks. Two publications in a newspaper published once a week or more often, with at
least five days intervening between the respective publication dates not counting such publication
dates, are sufficient. The period of notice will commence upon the first day of publication and
terminate at the end of the fourteenth day. The first publication shall occur not later than 20 days
before the date of the public hearing.
Section 7. Notice to Water and Electric Providers. Pursuant to Section 5898.24 of the
Streets & Highways Code, written notice of the proposed contractual assessment program within
the City to all water and electric providers within the boundaries of the City has been provided.
Section 8. Report. The Board hereby directs the Program Administrator to prepare the
Report and file said Report with the Board at or before the time of the public hearing described in
Section 6 hereof containing all of the following:
a)
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A map showing the boundaries of the territory within which contractual
assessments are proposed to be offered, as set forth in Section 4 hereof.

b)
c)

d)

e)

A draft contractual assessment contract (the “Contract”) specifying the terms and
conditions of the agreement between CEDA and a property owner within the City.
A statement of CEDA’s policies concerning contractual assessments including all
of the following:
(1)
Identification of types of Authorized Improvements that may be financed
through the use of contractual assessments.
(2)
Identification of the CEDA official authorized to enter into contractual
assessments on behalf of CEDA.
(3)
A maximum aggregate dollar amount of contractual assessments.
(4)
A method for setting requests from property owners for financing through
contractual assessments in priority order in the event that requests appear
likely to exceed the authorization amount.
A plan for raising a capital amount required to pay for work performed in
connection with contractual assessments. The plan may include the sale of a bond
or bonds or other financing relationship pursuant to Section 5898.28 of Chapter 29.
The plan (i) shall include a statement of, or method for determining, the interest
rate and time period during which contracting property owners would pay any
assessment, (ii) shall provide for any reserve fund or funds, and (iii) shall provide
for the apportionment of all or any portion of the costs incidental to financing,
administration and collection of the contractual assessment program among the
consenting property owners and CEDA.
A report on the results of the discussions with the City Auditor-Controller described
in Section 10 hereof, concerning the additional fees, if any, that will be charged to
CEDA for inclusion of the proposed contractual assessments on the general
property tax roll of the City, and a plan for financing the payment of those fees.

Section 9. Nature of Assessments. Assessments levied pursuant to Chapter 29, and the
interest and any penalties thereon, will constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on
which they are made, until they are paid. Unless otherwise directed by CEDA, the assessments
shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as the general taxes of the City on real
property are payable, and subject to the same penalties and remedies and lien priorities in the event
of delinquency and default.
Section 10. Consultations with City Auditor-Controller. CEDA hereby directs the
Program Administrator to enter into discussions with the City Auditor-Controller in order to reach
agreement on what additional fees, if any, will be charged to CEDA for incorporating the proposed
contractual assessments into the assessments of the general taxes of the City on real property.
Section 11. Preparation of Current Roll of Assessment. Pursuant to Section 5898.24(c),
CEDA hereby designates the Program Administrator as the responsible party for annually
preparing the current roll of assessment obligations by assessor’s parcel number on property
subject to a voluntary contractual assessment.
Section 12. Procedures for Responding to Inquiries. The Program Administrator shall
establish procedures to promptly respond to inquiries concerning current and future estimated
liability for a voluntary contractual assessment.
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Section 13. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November, 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
By:____________________________
Gurbax Sahota, Chair
ATTEST:

______________________________________
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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Staff Report
Action Requested

Borrower(s)
Borrower
Description

Approve Resolution 21-48 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Authorizing
and Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California Enterprise Development
Authority Will Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of Financing and/or Refinancing
the Cost of the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement, Equipping and Furnishing of
Healthcare Facilities for the Benefit of Community Health Systems, Inc. and/or a Related or
Successor Entity; Providing the Terms and Conditions for Such Loan Agreement and Other
Matters Relating Thereto Herein Specified.
Community Health Systems, Inc.
Community Health Systems, Inc. (CHSI) is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)
operating six community health centers in the tri-county area of: San Bernardino, Riverside,
and San Diego. CHSI focuses on providing high quality and compassionate medical, dental,
women’s health, behavioral health, and vision care services to those who are under-served,
uninsured, or under-insured.
CHSI improves and strengthens the health of their diverse communities by providing
compassionate and comprehensive health services.
The proceeds, not to exceed $7,000,000, will be used to finance or refinance the cost of the
acquisition, construction, design, renovation, improvement, equipping, installation, and
furnishing of the Borrower's commercial medical office buildings located at (i) 1328 South
Mission Road, Fallbrook, and (ii) 18601 Valley Boulevard, Bloomington.

Public Benefits
Eligibility and
Policy Review

The tax-exempt financing will allow Community Health Systems, Inc. to realize savings that
can be put into rehabilitating real property.
CEDA staff has reviewed the project. The proposed financing is eligible pursuant to state and
federal law and addresses the objectives contained in CEDA’s Bond Issuance Policies and
Procedures:
The Borrower is capable of meeting the obligations incurred under the financing
documents;
The Payments to be made are adequate to pay the expenses of CEDA in connection with
the financing and to pay debt service; and
Proposed financing is appropriate for the project.
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 21-48 of the California Enterprise Development
Authority Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California
Enterprise Development Authority Will Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of
Financing and/or Refinancing the Cost of the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement,
Equipping and Furnishing of Healthcare Facilities for the Benefit of Community Health
Systems, Inc. and/or a Related or Successor Entity; Providing the Terms and Conditions for
Such Loan Agreement and Other Matters Relating Thereto Herein Specified.
g

g

g

Recommendation

RESOLUTION NO. 21-48
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING
AND
APPROVING
A
LOAN
AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WHICH THE CALIFORNIA
ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY WILL MAKE ONE OR
MORE LOANS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING AND/OR
REFINANCING THE COST OF THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION,
IMPROVEMENT, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF HEALTHCARE
FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF COMMUNITY HEALTH SYSTEMS,
INC. AND/OR A RELATED OR SUCCESSOR ENTITY; PROVIDING THE
TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SUCH LOAN AGREEMENT AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO HEREIN SPECIFIED
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2,
3 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of the Government
Code of the State of California (the “Act”), the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma entered into
a joint exercise of powers agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the California
Enterprise Development Authority (the “Authority”) was organized;
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Agreement and the Act to issue bonds,
notes or other evidences of indebtedness, or certificates of participation in leases or other
agreements, or enter into loan agreements to, among other things, finance or refinance facilities
owned and/or leased and operated by organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the public agencies which are members
of the Authority are authorized to jointly exercise any power common to such public agency
members, including, without limitation, the power to acquire and dispose of property, both real
and personal;
WHEREAS, the County of San Diego and the County of San Bernardino (the “Counties”)
are each an associate member of the Authority and are authorized to acquire and dispose of
property, both real and personal;
WHEREAS, Community Health Systems, Inc., a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation, and/or a related or successor entity ( the “Borrower”), has submitted an application to
the Authority requesting the Authority to make one or more tax-exempt and/or taxable loans in the
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000, and lend the proceeds thereof to the
Borrower (collectively, the “Borrower Loan”) to (a) finance or refinance the cost of the acquisition,
construction, design, renovation, improvement, equipping, installation, and furnishing of the
Borrower's commercial medical office buildings located at (i) 1328 South Mission Road,
Fallbrook, California 92028 and (ii) 18601 Valley Boulevard, Bloomington, California 92316, and
(b) pay costs of issuance and related costs in connection with the issuance of the Loans (collectively,
the “Project”);
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WHEREAS, the Facilities provide significant benefits to the residents of the Counties of
San Diego and San Bernardino through the healthcare services provided by the Borrower to
individuals and families residing in these counties, and based on representations of the Borrower,
the refinancing of the Facilities through the Authority will result in demonstrable savings in
effective interest rate;
WHEREAS, the Authority intends to use the proceeds of one or more tax-exempt loans
from CN Financing, Inc., a California corporation, or a related or successor entity (the “Lender”),
to the Authority (collectively, the “Authority Loan”) to make the Borrower Loan;
WHEREAS, there have been placed on file with the Authority prior to this meeting the
following documents and agreements:
(a)
A proposed form of the Loan Agreement, by and among CN Financing, Inc. (the
“Purchaser”), the Authority, and the Borrower (the “Loan Agreement”);
(b)
A proposed form of the Assignment Agreement (Fallbrook Property) (the “Fallbrook
Assignment Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Lender relating to the financing
of the real property located at 1328 South Mission Road, Fallbrook, California 92028; and
(c)
A proposed form of the Assignment Agreement (Bloomington Property) (the
“Bloomington Assignment Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the Lender relating to
the financing of the real property located at 18601 Valley Boulevard, Bloomington, California
92316; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 5852.1, certain information
regarding the Authority Loan and the Borrower Loan, attached hereto as Attachment I, has been
presented to the Authority by the Borrower based on good faith estimates by the Lender.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, as follows:
Section 1. The Authority finds that it is in the public interest to assist the Borrower in financing
and refinancing the Project.
Section 2. The Authority hereby approves of entering into the Authority Loan in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000, the interest with respect to which will be excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and use the proceeds thereof to make the
Borrower Loan pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Loan Agreement. The Authority
understands that the payments under the Borrower Loan will be assigned to the Lender to satisfy
the Authority’s payments under the Authority Loan. The payments to be made by the Authority
to the Lender under the Authority Loan will be satisfied solely from payments made by the
Borrower to the Lender (as assignee of the Authority) under the Borrower Loan.
Section 3. The proposed form of the Loan Agreement, by and among the Lender, the Authority
and the Borrower, on file with the Secretary of the Authority, is hereby approved. The Chair or
the Vice Chair of the Board of Directors (individually, an “Authorized Signatory” and,
collectively, the “Authorized Signatories”), acting alone, are hereby authorized and directed, for
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and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Loan Agreement in
substantially the form filed with the Authority prior to this meeting, with such changes and
insertions therein consistent with the stated terms of this Resolution as the Authorized Signatory
executing the same, with the advice of counsel to the Authority, may require or approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. The Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized to attest the execution of the Loan Agreement.
Section 4. The proposed form of the Fallbrook Assignment Agreement, by and between the
Authority and the Lender, on file with the Secretary of the Authority, is hereby approved. Each
Authorized Signatory, acting alone, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on
behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Fallbrook Assignment Agreement in
substantially the form filed with the Authority prior to this meeting, with such changes and
insertions therein consistent with the stated terms of this Resolution as the Authorized Signatory
executing the same, with the advice of counsel to the Authority, may require or approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. The Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized to attest the execution of the Fallbrook
Assignment Agreement.
Section 5. The proposed form of the Bloomington Assignment Agreement, by and between the
Authority and the Lender, on file with the Secretary of the Authority, is hereby approved. Each
Authorized Signatory, acting alone, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on
behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Bloomington Assignment Agreement in
substantially the form filed with the Authority prior to this meeting, with such changes and
insertions therein consistent with the stated terms of this Resolution as the Authorized Signatory
executing the same, with the advice of counsel to the Authority, may require or approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. The Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized to attest the execution of the Bloomington
Assignment Agreement.
Section 6. The Authority approves the Authority Loan, the interest with respect to which will be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and the making of the Borrower
Loan to the Borrower in an amount not to exceed $7,000,000 in accordance with the terms of and
to be secured by the Loan Agreement. Repayment of the principal of, premium, if any, and the
interest on, the Authority Loan shall be made solely from the revenues to be received by the
Authority from the Borrower Loan pursuant to the Loan Agreement, and the Authority Loan shall
not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the State of California or any political subdivision
thereof. The Authority Loan shall bear interest at the rate or rates set forth in the Loan Agreement.
Section 7. All assignments, consents, approvals, notices, orders, requests and other actions
permitted or required by any of the documents authorized by this Resolution, whether before or
after the borrowing of amounts from the Lender and the making of the Borrower Loan to the
Borrower, any of the foregoing which may be necessary or desirable in connection with any default
under or amendment of such documents, any transfer or other disposition of the Facilities, any
assignment by the Lender to an affiliate of the Lender, accredited investor or qualified institutional
buyer or any prepayment of the Borrower Loan, may be given or taken by an Authorized Signatory
without further authorization by this Board of Directors of the Authority, and such officers are
hereby authorized and directed to give any such consent, approval, notice, order or request and to
3
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take any such action which such officers may deem necessary or desirable to further the purposes
of this Resolution.
Section 8. All actions heretofore taken by the officials and agents of the Authority with respect to
the Authority Loan and the Borrower Loan are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified, and the
officials of the Authority and their authorized designees are hereby authorized and directed, jointly
and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all certificates,
agreements and documents, including, without limitation, a tax certificate and agreement, which
they or the Authority’s counsel or the Lender’s counsel may deem necessary or advisable in order
to consummate the Borrower Loan and the Authority Loan and otherwise to effectuate the
purposes of this Resolution, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized
to attest the execution of such certificates, agreements and documents.
Section 9. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if any action,
phrase or provision is for any reason declared to be invalid, such declaration does not affect the
validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions.
Section 10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Resolution, no documents referenced
in this Resolution may be executed or delivered until the County of San Diego and the County of
San Bernardino have held the requisite public hearings and the respective Boards of Supervisors
of each such County has approved the making of the Authority Loan pursuant to Section 147(f) of
the Code.
Section 11. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.
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PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th of November 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
By_______________________________________
Gurbax Sahota, Chair
Attest:

By________________________________________
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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I, the undersigned, the duly appointed and qualified Assistant Secretary of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly
adopted by the Board of Directors of said Authority at a duly called meeting of the Board of
Directors of said Authority held in accordance with law on November 18, 2021.

Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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Attachment I
PUBLIC DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CONDUIT REVENUE OBLIGATIONS
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 5852.1, Community Health Systems, Inc., a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Borrower”), has provided the following
required information to the California Enterprise Development Authority (the “Authority”), as
conduit financing provider, prior to the Authority’s regular meeting on November 18, 2021 (the
“Meeting”) of its Board of Directors (the “Board”) at which Meeting, the Board will consider the
authorization of conduit revenue obligations in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$7,000,000 (the “Obligations”).
1. CN Financing, Inc. as private placement lender, engaged by the Borrower provided the
Borrower with the required good faith estimates relating to the Obligations as follows (as
further detailed in Schedule A attached hereto):
A. The true interest cost of the Obligations, which means the rate necessary to discount
the amounts payable on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the
purchase price received for the Obligations (to the nearest ten-thousandth of one
percent): 3.10624%.
B. The finance charge of the Obligations, which means the sum of all fees and charges
paid to third parties: $168,990.00
C. The amount of proceeds received by the public body for sale of the Obligations less
the finance charge of the Obligations described in subparagraph (B) and any
reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the Obligations:
$5,401,010.00
D. The total payment amount, which means the sum total of all payments the Borrower
will make to pay debt service on the Obligations plus the finance charge of the
Obligations described in subparagraph (B) not paid with the proceeds of the
Obligations (which total payment amount shall be calculated to the final maturity
of the Obligations): $6,863,684.31
2. The good faith estimates provided above were presented to the governing board of the
Borrower, or presented to the official or officials or committee designated by the governing
board of the Borrower to obligate the Borrower in connection with the Obligations or, in
the absence of a governing board, presented to the official or officials of the Borrower
having authority to obligate the Borrower in connection with the Obligations.
The foregoing estimates constitute good faith estimates only. The actual principal amount of the
Obligations issued and sold, the true interest cost thereof, the finance charges thereof, the amount
of proceeds received therefrom and total payment amount with respect thereto may differ from
such good faith estimates due to a variety of factors. The actual interest rates borne by the
Obligations and the actual amortization of the Obligations will depend on market interest rates at
the time of the issuance of the Obligations. Market interest rates are affected by economic and
other factors beyond the control of the Borrower.
Attachment I-1
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The Authority is authorized to make this document available to the public at the Meeting of the
Authority.

Attachment I-2
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Staff Report
Action Requested

Borrower(s)
Borrower
Description

Approve Resolution 21-49 of the California Enterprise Development Authority Authorizing
and Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California Enterprise Development
Authority Will Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of Financing, Refinancing and/or
Reimbursing the Cost of the Acquisition, Construction, Improvement, Equipping and
Furnishing of Educational Facilities for the Benefit of New Horizon Irvine Educational
Foundation, New Horizon School, Irvine and/or a Related or Successor Entity; Providing the
Terms and Conditions for Such Loan Agreement and Other Matters Relating Thereto Herein
Specified.
New Horizon Irvine Educational Foundation, New Horizon School, Irvine
New Horizon offers exemplary academics and community programs in a progressive Islamic
environment and fosters a positive American Muslim identity by preparing students with the
knowledge to succeed, confidence to lead, and compassion to serve in an ever-changing world.
It all started with a grassroots effort led by individuals who wanted to bring the principles and
ideology of the Islamic Center of Southern California to Orange County in 1998. Since
opening its doors in 2001, New Horizon continues to look ahead to the needs of the community
and pushes the school’s mission and vision in the right direction.
New Horizon aims to be recognized nationally as the model independent Islamic school
integrating Quranic principles with cutting-edge technology and creativity to make meaningful
contributions to the broader community.

Public Benefits
Eligibility and
Policy Review

The proceeds, not to exceed $10,000,000, will be used for financing, refinancing and/or
reimbursing the Borrower for the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving, and equipping
certain educational facilities located at 10 Marconi, Irvine.
The tax-exempt financing will allow New Horizon Irvine Educational Foundation, New
Horizon School, Irvine to realize savings that can be put into rehabilitating real property.
CEDA staff has reviewed the project. The proposed financing is eligible pursuant to state and
federal law and addresses the objectives contained in CEDA’s Bond Issuance Policies and
Procedures:
The Borrower is capable of meeting the obligations incurred under the financing
documents;
The Payments to be made are adequate to pay the expenses of CEDA in connection with
the financing and to pay debt service; and
Proposed financing is appropriate for the project.
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 21-49 of the California Enterprise Development
Authority Authorizing and Approving a Loan Agreement Pursuant to which the California
Enterprise Development Authority Will Make One or More Loans For the Purpose of
Financing, Refinancing and/or Reimbursing the Cost of the Acquisition, Construction,
Improvement, Equipping and Furnishing of Educational Facilities for the Benefit of New
Horizon Irvine Educational Foundation, New Horizon School, Irvine and/or a Related or
Successor Entity; Providing the Terms and Conditions for Such Loan Agreement and Other
Matters Relating Thereto Herein Specified.
g

g

g

Recommendation

RESOLUTION NO. 21-49
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING
AND
APPROVING
A
LOAN
AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WHICH THE CALIFORNIA
ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY WILL MAKE ONE OR
MORE LOANS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING, REFINANCING
AND/OR REIMBURSING THE COST OF THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF NEW HORIZON
IRVINE EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION, NEW HORIZON SCHOOL,
IRVINE AND/OR A RELATED OR SUCCESSOR ENTITY; PROVIDING
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SUCH LOAN AGREEMENT AND
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO HEREIN SPECIFIED
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, comprising
Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”), the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma
entered into a joint exercise of powers agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the
California Enterprise Development Authority (the “Authority”) was organized;
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Agreement and the Act to issue bonds,
notes or other evidences of indebtedness, or certificates of participation in leases or other
agreements, or enter into financing agreements to, among other things, finance or refinance
facilities owned and/or leased and operated by organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the public agencies which are members
of the Authority are authorized to jointly exercise any power common to such public agency
members, including, without limitation, the power to acquire and dispose of property, both real
and personal;
WHEREAS, the City of Irvine (the “City”) is an associate member of the Authority and
is authorized to acquire and dispose of property, both real and personal;
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Authority may, at its option, issue
bonds, rather than certificates of participation, and enter into a loan agreement, financing
agreement or similar agreement for the purposes of promoting economic development;
WHEREAS, New Horizon Irvine Educational Foundation (the “Borrower”), a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), has submitted an application to the
Authority requesting the Authority to make one or more tax-exempt loans (collectively, the
“Borrower Loan”) in the principal amount not to exceed $10,000,000 to the Borrower for the
purpose of (a) financing, refinancing and/or reimbursing the Borrower for the costs of acquiring,
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constructing, improving and equipping certain educational facilities located at 10 Marconi, Irvine,
California 92618 (the “Facilities”) and (b) paying certain costs of issuance of the Loan;
WHEREAS, the Facilities are leased to and operated by New Horizon School, Irvine, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “School”);
WHEREAS, the Authority intends to use the proceeds of one or more tax-exempt loans
from First Republic Bank, a California banking corporation, or a related or successor entity (the
“Lender”), to the Authority (collectively, the “Authority Loan”) to make the Borrower Loan;
WHEREAS, there have been placed on file with the Authority prior to this meeting the
following documents and agreements:
(a)
A proposed form of Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”), by and among the Lender,
the Authority and the Borrower; and
(b)
A proposed form of Assignment Agreement (the “Assignment Agreement”), by and
between the Authority and the Lender;
WHEREAS, based on representations of the Borrower, the Borrower and the Facilities
provide significant benefits to the residents of the City and surrounding community by the
operation of the Facilities in connection with the School’s mission to provide exemplary academics
and community programs in a progressive Islamic environment and foster a positive American
Muslim identity by preparing students with the knowledge to succeed, confidence to lead and
compassion to serve in an ever changing world; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 5852.1, certain information
regarding the Authority Loan, attached hereto as Attachment I, has been presented to the Authority
by the Borrower based on good faith estimates by the Lender.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Authority,
as follows:
Section 1. The Authority finds it is in the public interest to assist the Borrower in financing,
refinancing and/or reimbursing the Borrower in connection with the Facilities.
Section 2. The Authority hereby approves of the entering into the Authority Loan, the interest
with respect to which will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and
using the proceeds thereof to make the Borrower Loan pursuant to the terms and provisions of the
Loan Agreement. The Authority understands that the payments under the Borrower Loan will be
assigned to the Lender to satisfy the Authority’s payments under the Authority Loan. The
payments to be made by the Authority to the Lender under the Authority Loan will be satisfied
solely from payments made by the Borrower to the Lender (as assignee of the Authority) under
the Borrower Loan.
Section 3. The proposed form of the Loan Agreement, by and among the Lender, the Authority
and the Borrower, on file with the Secretary of the Authority, is hereby approved. The Chair or
the Vice Chair of the Board of Directors (individually, an “Authorized Signatory” and,
2
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collectively, the “Authorized Signatories”), acting alone, are hereby authorized and directed, for
and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Loan Agreement in
substantially the form filed with the Authority prior to this meeting, with such changes and
insertions therein consistent with the stated terms of this Resolution as the Authorized Signatory
executing the same, with the advice of counsel to the Authority, may require or approve, such
approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. The Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized to attest the execution of the Loan Agreement.
Section 4. The proposed form of the Assignment Agreement, by and between the Authority and
the Lender, on file with the Secretary of the Authority, is hereby approved. Each Authorized
Signatory, acting alone, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of
the Authority, to execute and deliver the Assignment Agreement in substantially the form filed
with the Authority prior to this meeting, with such changes and insertions therein consistent with
the stated terms of this Resolution as the Authorized Signatory executing the same, with the advice
of counsel to the Authority, may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced
by the execution and delivery thereof. The Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority is
authorized to attest the execution of the Assignment Agreement.
Section 5. The Authority approves the Authority Loan, the interest with respect to which will be
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and the making of the Borrower
Loan to the Borrower in an amount not to exceed $10,000,000 in accordance with the terms of and
to be secured by the Loan Agreement. Repayment of the principal of, premium, if any, and the
interest on, the Authority Loan shall be made solely from the revenues to be received by the
Authority from the Borrower Loan pursuant to the Loan Agreement, and the Authority Loan shall
not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the State of California or any political subdivision
thereof. The Authority Loan shall bear interest at the rate or rates set forth in the Loan Agreement.
Section 6. All assignments, consents, approvals, notices, orders, requests and other actions
permitted or required by any of the documents authorized by this Resolution, whether before or
after the borrowing of amounts from the Lender and the making of the Borrower Loan to the
Borrower, any of the foregoing which may be necessary or desirable in connection with any default
under or amendment of such documents, any transfer or other disposition of the Facilities, any
assignment by the Lender to an affiliate of the Lender, accredited investor or qualified institutional
buyer or any prepayment of the Borrower Loan, may be given or taken by an Authorized Signatory
without further authorization by this Board of Directors of the Authority, and such officers are
hereby authorized and directed to give any such consent, approval, notice, order or request and to
take any such action which such officers may deem necessary or desirable to further the purposes
of this Resolution.
Section 7. All actions heretofore taken by the officials and agents of the Authority with respect to
the Authority Loan and the Borrower Loan are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified, and the
officials of the Authority and their authorized designees are hereby authorized and directed, jointly
and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all certificates,
agreements and documents, including, without limitation, a tax certificate and agreement, which
they or the Authority’s counsel or the Lender’s counsel may deem necessary or advisable in order
to consummate the Borrower Loan and the Authority Loan and otherwise to effectuate the
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purposes of this Resolution, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized
to attest the execution of such certificates, agreements and documents.
Section 8. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if any action,
phrase or provision is for any reason declared to be invalid, such declaration does not affect the
validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions.
Section 9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Resolution, no documents referenced
in this Resolution may be executed or delivered until the City has held the requisite hearing and
the Board of Supervisors of the City has approved the making of the Authority Loan pursuant to
Section 147(f) of the Code.
Section 10. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.
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PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By
Gurbax Sahota, Chair

Attest:

By
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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I, the undersigned, the duly appointed and qualified Assistant Secretary of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly
adopted by the Board of Directors of said Authority at a duly called meeting of the Board of
Directors of said Authority held in accordance with law on November 18, 2021.

Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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ATTACHMENT I
PUBLIC DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CONDUIT REVENUE OBLIGATIONS
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 5852.1, New Horizon Irvine Educational
Foundation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the “Borrower”), has provided the
following required information to the California Enterprise Development Authority (the
“Authority”), as conduit financing provider, prior to the Authority’s regular meeting on November
18, 2021 (the “Meeting”) of its Board of Directors (the “Board”) at which Meeting, the Board will
consider the authorization of conduit revenue obligations in the aggregate principal amount not to
exceed $10,000,000 (the “Obligations”).
1. First Republic Bank, as a private placement lender, engaged by the Borrower provided the
Borrower with the required good faith estimates relating to the Obligations as follows:
A. The true interest cost of the Obligations, which means the rate necessary to discount
the amounts payable on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the
purchase price received for the Obligations (to the nearest ten-thousandth of one
percent): 3.08437%
B. The finance charge of the Obligations, which means the sum of all fees and charges
paid to third parties (which includes, among other fees, the conduit issuer fee):
$170,000.00
C. The amount of proceeds received by the public body for sale of the Obligations less
the finance charge of the Obligations described in subparagraph (B) and any
reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the Obligations:
$9,830,000.00
D. The total payment amount, which means the sum total of all payments the Borrower
will make to pay debt service on the Obligations plus the finance charge of the
Obligations described in subparagraph (B) not paid with the proceeds of the
Obligations (which total payment amount shall be calculated to the final maturity
of the Obligations): $15,067,421.45
2. The good faith estimates provided above were based on the information which was
presented to the governing board of the Borrower, or presented to the official or officials
or committee designated by the governing board of the Borrower to obligate the Borrower
in connection with the Obligations or, in the absence of a governing board, presented to
the official or officials of the Borrower having authority to obligate the Borrower in
connection with the Obligations.
The foregoing estimates constitute good faith estimates only. The actual principal amount of the
Obligations issued and sold, the true interest cost thereof, the finance charges thereof, the amount
of proceeds received therefrom and total payment amount with respect thereto may differ from
such good faith estimates due to a variety of factors. The actual interest rates borne by the
Obligations and the actual amortization of the Obligations will depend on market interest rates at
the time of the issuance of the Obligations. Market interest rates are affected by economic and
other factors beyond the control of the Borrower.
I-1
4862-9901-0562.2

The Authority is authorized to make this document available to the public at the Meeting of the
Authority.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 21-50
RESOLUTION OF THE CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING PUBLIC MEETINGS TO BE HELD VIA
TELECONFERENCING PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 54953(e) AND MAKING FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS
REGARDING THE SAME
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2,
3 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of the Government
Code of the State of California (the “Act”), the cities of Eureka, Lancaster and Selma entered into
a joint exercise of powers agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the California
Enterprise Development Authority (the “Authority”) was organized; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority (the "Board") is committed to
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in its meetings while balancing the need
to conduct public meetings in a manner that reduces the likelihood of exposure to COVID-19 and
protects the public’s health; and
WHEREAS, all meetings of the Authority are open and public, as required by the Ralph
M. Brown Act, so that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the Board
conduct its business; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, signed by Governor Newsom and effective
on September 16, 2021, legislative bodies of local agencies may hold public meetings via
teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e), without complying with the
requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), if the legislative body complies with
certain enumerated requirements in any of the following circumstances:
1. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing.
2. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for
the purpose of determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.
3. The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and
has determined, by majority vote, that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would
present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Emergency”); and
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention continue to advise that
COVID-19 spreads more easily indoors than outdoors and that people are more likely to be
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exposed to COVID-19 when they are closer than 6 feet apart from others for longer periods of
time; and
WHEREAS, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, to protect the public’s health, and
the need to promote social distancing to prevent the disease from spreading, the Authority intends
to hold public meetings via teleconferencing pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e).
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the California
Enterprise Development Authority, as follows:
Section 1. The above recitals, and each of them, are true and correct.
Section 2. The Board has determined that, as a result of the Emergency, meeting in
person presents imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.
Section 3. The Board hereby finds that the Authority shall conduct its meetings pursuant
to Government Code section 54953(e).
Section 4. Staff is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry
out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings in
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the
Brown Act.
Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption.
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PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of November, 2021.
CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By
Gurbax Sahota, Chair

By
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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CERTIFICATE
I, Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary of the California Enterprise Development
Authority hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true, and correct copy of the resolution of the
Board of Directors of the California Enterprise Development Authority duly adopted at its
meeting of November 18, 2021.

By
Michelle Stephens, Assistant Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
California Enterprise Development Authority
Sacramento, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of California Enterprise Development
Authority (the Authority) as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 and the related statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position, statement of cash flows, statement of fiduciary cash receipts and
disbursements and related notes to the financial statements for the years then ended.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and cash basis
for the fiduciary activities as described in Note 1; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basic financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements
for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489
www.jpmcpa.com jmarta@jpmcpa.com
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of California Enterprise Development Authority as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as the
fiduciary cash receipts and disbursements in accordance with the cash basis of accounting described in
Note 1.
Basis of Accounting
As further described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the fiduciary activities related to the residential
PACE program are presented on the cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22,
2021 on our consideration of California Enterprise Development Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering California
Enterprise Development Authority internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
October 22, 2021
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Overview
This section of the California Enterprise Development Authority (CEDA) annual financial report presents
management’s discussion and analysis of its financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2021. It is being provided for the purpose of enhancing the information in the financial audit and
should be reviewed in concert with that report.
CEDA is a joint powers authority created in 2006. The Authority has a governing Board of eight
members who comprise the Executive Committee of the California Association for Local Economic
Development (CALED) and the President/CEO of CALED. Public agency members of CEDA join to
facilitate the issuance of private activity bonds for the purpose of economic and community development.
Guiding Principles for Budget Development
CEDA prepares a budget using the following principles to align its financial resources with its mission
and organizational priorities:
• CEDA’s financial and administrative activities are governed by means of a Management
Agreement with CALED.
• Programs and services are funded within the limits of fee revenue derived from bond issuance.
• Two reserve funds (operating budget and legal) are budgeted when necessary and shown in the
adopted budget. At the end of the year, excess funds may be committed to the reserves.
Financial Highlights
In 2020-21, CEDA issued 32 bonds for a total of $590,475,020. In comparison, 2019-20 saw a total
dollar amount of authorized bonds at $553,771,000 and 27 deals closed. Fee Revenues were higher this
year than the previous year with $936,243 in 2020-21 versus $898,720 in 2019-20 due more bonds being
issued than in the previous year.
The management fee payable to CALED of $300,000 that was approved by the CEDA board to
commence fiscal year 2017-18 remained the same in fiscal year 2020-2021.
The success of CEDA’s conduit-bond issuances is best seen in the contributions made to economic
development. CEDA was formed in 2006 with the specific mission of supporting economic development
in California. CEDA’s contributions help economic developers attend training events and further support
economic development. Due to CEDA’s strong year in revenues and in light of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic, additional contributions to economic development were approved by the CEDA Board on June
17, 2021 to be directed to CALED and the California Academy for Economic Development (The
Academy), $400,000 and $100,000, respectively. The CEDA Board of Directors felt support was needed
to further CALED’s mission as it continued to stabilize after two years without a conference and in
support of funds needed to create support for practitioners working on the transactional side of economic
development. The contribution to The Academy was in support of its mission and to help with cash flow
issues caused by the EDA Outsmart Disaster grant. CEDA’s total contribution to economic development
for the FY 2020-21 was $520,000.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

At the end of June 2021, net position was $1,394,726 compared to $1,309,392 in June 2020, which is
evidence of CEDA’s steady success and growing viability in 2021.
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Current Assets

2021
$ 1,395,375

2020
$ 1,314,699

2019
$ 1,315,814

Current Liabilities

$

$

$

Net Position Unrestricted

$ 1,394,726

649

5,307

$ 1,309,392

45,000

$ 1,270,814

Condensed Statement of Activities
2020
899,101

$

2019
707,562

$851,101

$860,523

$

574,248

$85,334

$38,578

$

133,314

Net Position Beginning

$1,309,392

$1,270,814

$ 1,137,500

Net Position Ending

$1,394,726

$1,309,392

$ 1,270,814

Revenues
Expenses
Changes in Net Position

$

2021
936,435

$

Economic Factors Affecting the Future
Primary sources of revenue are derived from application, issuance, annual fees and PACE management
fees. Primary expenditures are the Management Agreement with CALED, various direct expenses (such
as SLIP Insurance), and contributions of excess funds to CALED for economic development purposes.
The Authority had a very successful year considering the ongoing pandemic. Project inflow remained
strong throughout the year, thanks to established partners. CEDA staff is focused on continuing this deal
flow in the 2021-22 fiscal year by supporting and marketing to existing key partnerships and targeting
new partners and potential deal flows.
Non-Profit 501(c)(3) bonds continued to drive CEDA’s growth this past year and likely will continue to
make up the majority of issuances in the coming fiscal year. These deals are a combination of new
projects and refinances.
No industrial development bonds (IDBs) were issued in the 2020-21 fiscal year, but CEDA continues to
market this financing tool which supports growth in the statewide manufacturing industry.
The PACE program includes commercial PACE (C-PACE) projects, and in 2020-21, CEDA issued one
C-PACE bond. CEDA hopes to close more C-PACE projects in the 2021-22 fiscal year as there are a
number in the pipeline. Our partner, Dividend Finance, continues to pay CEDA a $75,000 annual
management fee.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021

2020

$ 1,362,647
31,840
888

$ 1,289,027
2,500
23,172

1,395,375

1,314,699

Current Liabilities
Due to affiliated entity

649

5,307

Total liabilities

649

5,307

$ 1,394,726

$ 1,309,392

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total assets
LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
OPERATING REVENUES
Fee revenues
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees
Contribution to economic development
Direct program expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment income
Change in net position
Net position, July 1
Net position, June 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

$

2020

936,243

$

898,720

936,243

898,720

300,000
520,000
31,101

300,000
530,000
30,523

851,101

860,523

85,142

38,197

192

381

85,334

38,578

1,309,392

1,270,814

$ 1,394,726

$ 1,309,392
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from fees charged
Cash (payments) receipts for performance deposits
Cash paid for management fees and economic development
Cash paid for direct program expenses

$

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

898,220
(45,000)
(824,693)
(41,726)
(13,199)

381

73,620

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

192

Increase (decrease) in cash

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease in):
Performance deposits
Due to affiliated entities

906,903
(824,658)
(8,817)
73,428

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income received

Ending cash and cash equivalents

2020

(12,818)

1,289,027

1,301,845

$ 1,362,647

$ 1,289,027

$

$

$

85,142

38,197

(29,340)
22,284

(500)
(11,203)

(4,658)

(45,000)
5,307

73,428

$

(13,199)
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Residential PACE Program Activity
2021
Cash Receipts
PACE Funding
Prepayments Received
Reimbursed Expenses
Other Deposits
County Remittances Received
Additions to staging account

$

1,663,654
4,042
868
-

2020

$

330,763
20,083
2,245
19,898
326,240

Total additions

1,668,564

699,229

Cash Disbursements
Project Costs
Prepayments Paid Out
Bank Fees
Other Disbursements
Adminstrative Fees

860,029
2,230
4,042
-

1,110,713
22,945
7,157
3,539

866,301

1,144,354

Total deductions
Change in Cash Position
Cash - beginning
Cash - ending

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

802,263

(445,125)

95,103

540,228

897,366

$

95,103
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. REPORTING ENTITY
California Enterprise Development Authority (the "Authority") is a joint powers agency formed
on June 1, 2006 pursuant to the provisions of Title I, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article I of the
Government Code of the State of California. The purpose of the Authority is to assist the
members, for-profit and non-profit organizations located within the jurisdictions of the members
in financing industrial and commercial development projects and other public purpose projects.
The Authority issues conduit debt for the express purpose of providing capital financing for a
specific third party that is not part of the Authority's financial reporting entity. Although the
conduit debt obligations may bear the name of California Enterprise Development Authority, the
Authority has no obligation for such debt beyond the resources provided by a lease or a loan with
the third party on whose behalf they are issued.
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program
Property assessed clean energy (PACE) is a mechanism for financing energy efficiency and
renewable energy improvements on properties. Under Assembly Bill 811, California property
owners in special assessment districts may enter into voluntary contractual assessments against
their properties, to finance a range of authorized energy and water efficiency products and
improvements. In partnership with Dividend Finance, CEDA offers PACE funding to property
owners to amortize payments for eligible improvements for up to 20 years with long term, low
interest rate loans and no money down, repaid as a line-item on the property owner’s annual
property tax bill.
CEDA contracted with Dividend Finance/Figtree Financing to provide program administration
for the PACE program. The current agreement calls for Dividend Finance/Figtree Financing to
pay CEDA an annual fee of $75,000 to reimburse the Authority for administrative and overhead
costs.
During fiscal year 2016-17, CEDA implemented a residential PACE (R-PACE) program in
addition to commercial PACE (C-PACE) already in its portfolio. On behalf of Dividend
Finance’s clients, CEDA issues multijurisdictional bonds that generate private capital for PACE
commercial property improvement projects and bonds to take out loans to finance residential
property projects.
Legislation passed in January 2018 resulted in Dividend Finance halting new R-PACE project
originations as of April 1, 2018 until solutions to meet the necessary underwriting requirements
could be resolved. The residential PACE program (R-PACE) ended in June 2019 with no new
assessment contracts entered into in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. However, CEDA
continues to service previously existing R-PACE contracts and perform administrative work for
R-PACE related to the closing of the program. CEDA maintains a relationship and agreement
with Dividend Finance for the commercial PACE program and currently focuses on entering into
new commercial PACE transactions.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

A.

REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)
Since these funds are controlled by a third party and not by CEDA, the Authority has elected to
use the cash basis of accounting as described in Note 1.B.

B.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund and its financial statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the
Authority's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority
include application, issuance and annual fees. Operating expenses of the Authority include the
cost of providing the services, administrative expenses and management fees. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and expense.
Fiduciary Funds – Cash Basis
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The Authority uses a fiduciary fund to account for the proceeds and expense
associated with its Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) program. The fund activities are
reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the Authority’s general operations. The
fiduciary fund financial statement has been prepared on the cash receipts and disbursements basis
of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles.
Under that basis, the only asset recognized is cash, and no liabilities are recognized. The cash
basis differs from generally accepted accounting principles primarily because the effects of
outstanding dues and obligations for assessments unpaid at the date of the financial statement are
not included in the financial statement.

C. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.
D. INCOME TAXES
The Authority is a tax-exempt corporation under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue Code and
Section 23701d of the California and Taxation Code. Accordingly, no provision for federal or state
income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

E.

USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:
Governmental Activities
2021
2020
Cash in banks

$ 1,362,647

$ 1,289,027

Fiduciary Activities
2021
2020
$

897,366

$

95,103

Custodial Credit Risk
Section 53652 of the California Governmental Code requires financial institutions to secure deposits
made by governmental units in excess of insured amounts, by the pledging of governmental securities
as collateral. The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by governmental units.
3. PERFORMANCE DEPOSIT
Any organization applying for Industrial Development Bonds is required to submit a performance
deposit to the Authority equal to 0.5% of the amount of the Qualified Private Activity Bond
Allocation being requested, not to exceed $100,000. Upon issuance of the Bonds, the state notifies the
Authority who returns the performance deposit to the applicant. The Authority was not holding a
performance deposit as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has reviewed its financial statements and evaluated subsequent events for the period of
time from its year ended June 30, 2021 through October 22, 2021, the date the financial statements
were issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition or
disclosure in the accompanying financial statements.
5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Joint Powers Agreement has designated California Association for Local Economic Development
(CALED), a California nonprofit corporation, as the administrator and executor of the agreement. The
agreement also designates the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of CALED and the
President of CALED as the Board of Directors of the Authority.
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority entered into a management agreement
with CALED, an affiliated entity, for an annual fee of $300,000 for both fiscal years. CALED
provides administrative oversight, office space and other related expenses and services under the
management agreement.
As of June 30, 2021 there was a balance due to CALED in the amount of $649 which represents
expenses paid by CALED on behalf of the Authority. As of June 30, 2020, there was a prepaid
expense balance with CALED in the amount of $0.
6. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS
The Authority has issued Conduit Bonds to provide financial assistance to organizations for the
acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public
interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the organization served by the bond issuance. The Authority is not obligated in
any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements.
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CALIFORNIA ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

7. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
As of June 30, 2021, the Authority had the following number of Conduit Bonds authorized, related
authorized bond issue amount, related aggregate principal balance due as of June 30 and related fees
charged:

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30:
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
Totals

Number of
Bonds
Authorized
32
27
23
32
33
14
17
19
10
4
32
8
5
13
3
272

Dollar Amount of
Bonds Authorized
$
590,475,020
553,771,000
368,113,249
349,425,910
625,952,139
113,606,718
111,530,080
209,824,479
203,300,000
55,250,000
522,247,271
82,184,455
37,000,000
188,192,839
40,065,000
$ 4,050,938,160

Outstanding
Principal Balance
$ 509,315,973
547,816,514
325,830,919
240,171,296
487,194,561
94,143,188
60,438,637
78,308,361
92,034,940
167,822,532
3,426,788
13,763,988
45,178,637
$ 2,665,446,334

Issuance Fees
$
636,889
639,329
471,535
525,569
817,942
199,665
164,361
208,162
196,625
65,625
762,170
147,886
70,000
292,715
65,525
$ 5,263,998
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Board of Directors
California Enterprise Development Authority
Sacramento, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of California
Enterprise Development Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financials statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489
www.jpmcpa.com jmarta@jpmcpa.com
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether California Enterprise Development Authority’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
October 22, 2021
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors
California Enterprise Development Authority
Sacramento, California
We have audited the financial statements of the California Enterprise Development Authority (CEDA) for
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021.
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.
Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As communicated in our engagement letter dated July 19, 2021, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of CEDA solely for the
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control.
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted the majority of our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously
communicated to you. A change in the scope of the audit occurred as a result of the new Property
Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) program implemented by the Authority and administered by a third
party. This program and the related sources and uses of funds are reported as a fiduciary fund of the
Authority.

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, CA 95825 (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489
www.jpmcpa.com jmarta@jpmcpa.com

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm has complied with all relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence.
Qualitative Aspects of the Organization’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by CEDA is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. There
have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or
their application during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. No matters have come to our attention that
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
Significant Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.
We are not aware of any significant estimates in the financial statements.
Financial Statement Disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the California
Enterprise Development Authority’s financial statements relate to the conduit debt obligations in Note 6
to the financial statements.
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable
opinion unit. We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements as a result of our audit procedures.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements
that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. We are not aware of
any material misstatements as a result of our audit procedures.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to California Enterprise Development Authority’s financial statements
or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.
Representations Requested from Management
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the attached
letter dated October 22, 2021.
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.
Other Significant Findings or Issues
In the normal course of our professional association with California Enterprise Development Authority,
we generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, business conditions affecting the Organization, and operational plans and strategies that may
affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our
retention as the Authority’s auditors.
This report is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of California
Enterprise Development Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

James Marta & Company LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Sacramento, California
October 22, 2021
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Audit Summary
n

Our audit opinion is unmodified (Pgs 1-2)

n

Report on Internal Controls (Pgs 14-15)

n

Management Discussion & Analysis (Pgs 3-4)
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Financial Highlights
n
n
n

Issued 32 bonds for $590,475,020
Total Fees increased by $38K
Expenses decreased $9K
¨

n
n

Decrease in Economic Development contributions of $10K

Net income of $85,334
PACE program shown as fiduciary fund (cash
basis)
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Statement of Net Position
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position
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Fee Revenues
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Letters
n

Along with the audit report there is one additional letter:
¨Communication with those charged with governance
n Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
n Significant difficulties encountered during the audit - none
n Uncorrected and corrected misstatements – attached
n Disagreements with management - none
n Representations requested from management – attached
n Management’s consultation with other accountants - none
n Other significant findings or issues – none
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Summary
Strong net position at $1,394,726.
n Annual fees covered 51% of operating
expenses (excludes all contributions to
economic development).
n Excellent management team.
n
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